

TABLE OF CONTENTS (TC)
C--GENERAL SCHOOL ADMINISTRATION

| | |
|-----------------|--|
| CA | Goals and Objectives |
| CB | Ethics <u>SN An information category since ethics are determined by a profession and not imposed upon it.</u> |
| *CC | Organization Charts |
| *CCA | District |
| *CCB | District Departments |
| *CCC | School Buildings |
| CD | Line and Staff Relations |
| CE | Superintendent of Schools |
| CEA | Qualifications |
| CEB | Duties - KSA 12-1678a |
| CEC | Recruitment |
| CED (See CEC) | Appointment - KSA 72-8202b |
| CEE (See CEC) | Compensation and Benefits - KSA 72-5412; 72-8202b |
| CEF (See CEE) | Travel Expenses |
| CEG (See CEE) | Professional Development Opportunities |
| *CEH | Consulting (See GBRGA) |
| CEI | Evaluation - KSA 72-9001 <u>et seq.</u> ; |
| CEJ | Separation - KSA 72-5412 |
| CEK | Resignation |
| *CEL | Retirement (See GBQ) KSA 72-5501 <u>et seq.</u> |
| CF (See CEK) | Board-Superintendent Relations |
| CG | Administrative Personnel <u>SN For school management and supervisory personnel below district superintendent level.</u> |
| CG | Qualifications and Duties |
| CG | Recruitment |
| CG | Assignment |
| CG | Orientation |
| CG | Supervision (See GBH) - KSA 72-1111 |
| CG | Time Schedules |
| CG | Compensation Guides and Contracts - KSA 72-5412 |
| CG | Administrative Intern Program |
| CG | Personnel |
| CG | Travel Expense |
| CG | <u>SN Job descriptions listed and coded (CGBAA, CGBAB, etc.) job-by-job</u> |
| *CGD | Hiring |
| *CGG | Probation (See GBG) |
| CGI | Evaluation - KSA 72-9001 <u>et seq.</u> |
| *CGJ | Promotion |
| *CGK | Tenure Suspension |
| *CGL | Transfer (See GBM) |
| *CGM | Separation (See GBN) |

| | |
|-------------|--|
| *CGN | Resignation (See GCQ) |
| *CGP | Working Conditions (See GBR) |
| *CGPA | Health Examinations - KSA 72-5213 |
| *CGPC | Work Load |
| *CGPD | Travel Expenses (See GBRF) |
| *CGPE | Non-School Employment (See GBRG) |
| *CGPEA | Consulting (See GBRGA) |
| *CGPF | Professional Leaves and Absences (See GBRH) |
| *CGPFA | Sabbaticals (See GBRHA) |
| *CGPFB | Conferences and Visitations (See GBRHB) |
| *CGPG | Personal Leaves and Absences (See GBRI) |
| *CGPGA | Emergency and Legal (See GBRIA) |
| *CGPGB | Illness (See GBRI B) |
| *CGPGC | Disability (See GBRI BA) |
| *CGPGD | Military |
| *CGPGE | Religious (See GBRI E) |
| *CGPGF | Bereavement (See GBRI F) |
| *CGPH | Vacations |
| CJ | Consultants (See BBG) |
| CK (See CG) | Professional Development Opportunities |
| CL | Councils, Cabinets and Committees |
| CL | Types and Functions |
| CL | Method of Appointment |
| CL | Organization |
| CL | Reporting |
| CL | Resources |
| CL | Personnel |
| CL | Material |
| CL | Financial |
| CL | Liaison |
| CL | Reporting |
| CL | Dissolution |
| CM | Policy Implementation (See BDA, CGK, CMA, GAA, and JA) |
| CMA | Administrative Rules |
| CMA | Rules Drafting |
| CMA | Staff Involvement (See GAC) |
| CMA | Community Involvement |
| CMA | Student Involvement (See JCB) |
| CMA | Rules Adoption |
| CMA | Rules Dissemination |
| CMA | Rules Review (Also BDF) |
| CMA | Administration in Policy Absence |
| CN | Records (See JR) - KSA 72-5369 to 72-5373 |
| CN | Types |
| CN | Central Office Records - KSA 45-216 <u>et seq.</u> |
| CN | Building Records |
| CN | Public Use (See JRB) - KSA 45-215 <u>et seq.</u> |
| <u>CN</u> | <u>Copies of Records</u> |
| CN | Disposition (See JRC) - KSA 72-5369 to 72-5373 |

| | |
|-----|---|
| CO | Reports - KSA 72-7801 <u>et seq.</u> |
| CO | Types |
| CO | Dissemination - KSA 45-215 <u>et seq.</u> |
| CYA | Document Production |
| CYA | Destroying Documents |

CGK Suspension

CGK

The superintendent shall have the authority to suspend district administrators with pay pending further board action.

The superintendent may suspend administrators with pay for any reason, including, but not limited to, one or more of the following: alleged violations of or failure to implement board policy, rule, or regulation; refusal or failure to follow a reasonable directive of the administrator's supervisor, the superintendent, or the board; the filing of a complaint against the administrator with any civil or criminal authority; the alleged commission of an offense involving moral turpitude; or other good cause.

If suspension without pay is imposed on an administrator, the administrator is entitled to pay until the administrator has been advised of the basis for suspension and been given an opportunity to respond.

KASB Recommendation - 6/19

Approved: USD 264 Policy - 7/19

CM Policy Implementation (See BDA, CGK, CMA, GAA, and JA) CM

Administrative employees who fail to implement board policies may, by board action, be suspended without pay, demoted, placed on probation, non-renewed, or terminated.

~~Approved:~~ KASB Recommendation - 6/00; 01/02; 4/07; 6/19

Approved: USD 264 Policy - 7/19

CN **Public Records**

CN

(See BE, CNA, ECA, HAI, IDAE, II, JGGA, and JR et seq.)

The board designates the superintendent as its Freedom of Information Officer. The Freedom of Information Officer shall have the authority to establish and maintain a system of records in accordance with the Kansas Open Records Act and other applicable laws. The board further assigns the clerk to handle requests for records and to serve as the custodian of the records. The custodian shall prominently display and distribute or otherwise make available to the public a brochure concerning record access in the form prescribed by the local Freedom of Information Officer.

Types of Records

A public record means any recorded information, regardless of form or characteristics, which is made, maintained, kept by, or in the possession of the district, including those exhibited at public board meetings.

Central Office Records

Records maintained by the superintendent shall include, but may not be limited to, the following: financial, personnel, and property (both real and personal) owned by the district.

Building Records

Records maintained by the building principals shall include, but not be limited to, the following: activity funds, student records, and personnel records. (See JR et seq.)

Public Access

All records, except those subject to exception by the Kansas Open Records Act, shall be open to inspection by the general public during regular

office hours of any school or the district office. The superintendent will establish procedures for making records available on normal business days when district offices are closed. ~~The district may charge and require advance payment of a fee for providing access to or furnishing copies of public records. Copies of open records shall be available on written request.~~

Requests for access to open records shall be made in writing to an official custodian of district records. The official custodian shall examine each request to determine whether the record requested is an open record or is subject to an exception ~~of by~~ the Kansas Open Records Act ~~that would allow the record to remain closed. The custodian may also refuse to provide access to a public record or to permit inspection if a request places an unreasonable burden in producing public records or if the custodian has reason to believe that repeated requests are intended to disrupt other essential functions of the district.~~ The custodian shall either grant or deny ~~the each~~ request.

If the custodian does not grant the request, the person requesting the record shall receive a written explanation of the reason for the denial within three days of the request, if an explanation is requested. If the requester disagrees with the explanation, the freedom of information officer shall settle the dispute.

Each request for access to a public record shall be acted upon as soon as possible, but not later than the end of the third business day following the date that the request is received. If the request is not acted on immediately, the custodian shall inform the requester, within the three-day window, when and where the open record will be made available.

Each custodian shall file all requests and their dispositions in the appropriate office and make reports as requested by the superintendent or the board.

Copies of Records

~~Copies of open records shall be available upon written request, unless otherwise specified in Kansas or federal law. The board shall set a fee for copies of records. Requestors may only make abstracts or obtain copies of public records to which they have access under the Kansas Open Records Act. The district shall not be required to provide copies of radio or recording tapes or discs, video tapes, films, pictures, slides, graphics, illustrations, or similar audio or visual items or devices, unless such items or devices were shown or played during open session of a district board meeting. Similarly, the district shall not be required to provide such items or devices which are copyrighted by a person other than the board. Furthermore, nothing in the Kansas Open Records Act requires the district to electronically make copies available by allowing a requestor to obtain copies by inserting, connecting, or otherwise attaching an electronic device provided by the requestor to the computer or other electronic device of the district.~~

~~Advance payment of the expense of providing access to or copying furnishing copies of open records shall be borne by the requestor ~~individual requesting the copy~~. Under no circumstances shall the documents be allowed out of their usual building location without approval of the official custodian.~~

The board may prescribe reasonable fees for providing access to or

furnishing copies of public records, subject to the following:

- In the case of fees for copies of records, the fees shall not exceed the actual cost of furnishing copies, including the cost of staff time required to make the information available and printing fees of 25 cents per page, as applicable;
- In the case of fees for providing access to records maintained on computer facilities, the fees shall include only the cost of any computer services, including staff time required.

Revenue from copying open records will be deposited in the district's general fund.

Disposition

All district office records shall be kept for at least the minimum length of time required by law.

The clerk is designated as the official custodian of all board and district office records maintained by the district. Each building principal is designated as official custodian of all records maintained at the building level. In addition to those records required by law, the clerk shall be responsible for preparing and keeping other records necessary for the district's efficient operation.

District employees shall follow the guidelines found in the student records policies. (See IDAE and JR through JRD)

KASB Recommendation - 6/00; 01/02; 4/07; 6/07; 12/16; 12/18, 6/19

Approved: USD 264 Policy - 7/07; 1/19; 7/19

CNA Document Production, Including Electronic Information* **CNA**
(See BCBK, BE, CN, ECA, IDAE, II, JGGA, JR et seq. and KBA)

Destroying Documents

After the district receives knowledge of legal action against the district or its employees, no documents or electronic information pertaining to the subject of the action, maintained in any form, may be destroyed as long as the legal action is pending.

KASB Recommendation - 6/19

Approved: USD 264 Policy - 7/19

*For detailed information, see Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 34 Production of Documents, Electronically Stored Information.

EBBE **Emergency Drills**

EBBE

Building principals shall be responsible for scheduling and conducting emergency and safety drills as required by law and for ensuring students are instructed in the procedures to follow during the drills and in an actual emergency.

Each building principal shall develop a written plan for specific emergency drills required by law. The plan shall include specific arrangements for the evacuation of mobility impaired and other individuals who may need assistance from staff members to safely exit the building. Although plans for evacuation are essential, the state fire marshal may grant exemptions to the number or manner of drills required by law with regard to students receiving special education or related services, upon request.

Each principal shall conduct briefings with the staff concerning the emergency plan.

Each teacher shall explain relevant portions of the plan to students under their jurisdiction prior to a date established by the principal. Within one week there-after, the building principal shall conduct a surprise drill. Other drills shall be held at times determined by the building principal. _____

The four fire drills and three crisis drills required by law may be scheduled at any time during the school year. However, ~~the at least one of the three two~~ tornado drills required ~~by law~~ shall be conducted in September and March held prior to the tornado season beginning each April. All these drills must be conducted by each school during school hours and cannot be made part of regular dismissal at the close of the school day.

EBBE Emergency Drills

EBBE-2

Each emergency and safety drill plan shall be reviewed by the superintendent and filed with the clerk.

KASB Recommendation - 7/96; 4/07; 12/18; 6/19

Approved: USD 264 Policy - 6/04; 1/19; 7/19

GAAB Complaints of Discrimination (See JDDC, JGECA, and KN) GAAB

The district is committed to maintaining a working and learning environment free from discrimination, insult, intimidation or harassment due to race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, genetic information, ~~national origin~~ or disability. Any incident of discrimination in any form shall promptly be reported to an employee's immediate supervisor, the building principal or the district compliance coordinator for investigation and corrective action by the building or district compliance officer. Any employee who engages in discriminatory conduct shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Discrimination against any individual on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability, age, genetic information, or religion in the admission or access to, or treatment or employment in the district's programs and activities is prohibited. Paul Becker, Superintendent, ~~150 S. Prospect~~ 151 S 1st Ave, P.O. Box 248, Clearwater, KS 67026-0248, 620-584-2091, has been designated to coordinate compliance with nondiscrimination requirements contained in Title VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Complaints of discrimination should be addressed to an employee's supervisor or to the building principal or the compliance coordinator. Complaints against the superintendent should be addressed to the board of education.

Complaints of discrimination will be resolved using the district's discrimination complaint procedures in policy KN. ~~(See KN)~~

GAAB Complaints of Discrimination

GAAB-2

The district prohibits retaliation or discrimination against any person for opposing discrimination, including harassment; for participating in the complaint process; or making a complaint, testifying, assisting, or participating in any investigation, proceeding, or hearing.

KASB Recommendation - 2/98; 8/98, 6/15; 6/19

Approved: USD 264 Policy - 9/15; 7/19

Holding Public Office

Staff members elected or appointed to a public office which restricts the employee's ability to complete contractual obligations may be required to take unpaid leave for a period of time determined by the board or may be terminated.

Staff members holding a public office, which in the judgment of the board is less than full-time, shall request unpaid leave from the superintendent at least one week in advance.

An employee who must be absent from school to carry out the duties of a public office must take a leave of absence without pay for the duration of the public office.

Political Activity in the Schools

Staff members shall not use school time, school property, or school equipment for the purpose of furthering the interests of any political party, the campaign of any political candidate, or the advocacy of any political issue.

For the purposes of this policy, "advocacy of any political issue" shall not be deemed to include providing information on educational matters to elected officials.

KASB Recommendation - 2/98; 6/15; 6/19

Approved: USD 264 Policy - 9/15; 7/19

The district will participate in workers compensation as required by current statute. The combined workers compensation benefits and salary received under allowed paid leave shall not exceed one full day's pay.

All employees of the district shall be covered by workers compensation. Workers compensation coverage is provided for all employees regardless of assignment, length of assignment, and/or hours worked per day. Benefits are for personal injury from accident or industrial diseases arising out of and in the course of employment in the district.

An injured employee must notify the designated employer's workers compensation coordinator or, if the coordinator is unavailable, his or her supervisor within 20 days of the injury or within 30 days of repetitive trauma in order to be eligible for benefits.

The workers compensation plan will provide coverage for medical expenses and wages to the extent required by statute to those employees who qualify; however, the amount of workers compensation benefits and paid leave benefits shall not exceed a regular daily rate of pay. An employee using paid leave in combination with workers compensation will be charged for one full or partial day of paid leave, as provided for in the applicable leave policy or the negotiated agreement, for each day of absence until the employee's paid leave is exhausted.

Any employee who is off work and receiving workers compensation benefits shall be required to provide the designated workers compensation coordinator with a written doctor's release before the employee is allowed to re-

turn to work. In addition, should the employee be released to return to work by a doctor and fail to do so, all benefits under paid leave shall terminate, and those benefits under workers compensation shall be restricted as provided by current statute.

Whenever an employee is absent from work and is receiving workers compensation benefits due to a work-related injury or is receiving district paid disability insurance, the employee may use available paid leave to supplement the workers compensation or district paid disability insurance payments. Workers compensation benefits and FMLA benefits provided in a board approved plan shall run concurrently if both are applicable.

In no event shall the employee be entitled to a combination of workers compensation benefits, district paid disability insurance, and salary in excess of his/her full salary. Available paid leave may be used for this purpose until 1) available paid leave benefits are exhausted; 2) the employee returns to work; 3) the employee is released by the medical provider and a position is offered by the employer, but the employee declines to return to work; or 4) employment is terminated. Paid leave shall be calculated on a prorata amount equal to the percentage of salary paid by the district.

Testing

~~The board, through its designated workers compensation coordinator, may require a post injury chemical test as authorized by K.S.A. 44-501 et seq., and, if such test is refused, all workers compensation benefits shall be~~

~~forfeited by the employee. The board, through its designated workers compensation coordinator, may require employees who claim or are involved in an accident in the course of employment to submit to a post-injury chemical test. This includes instances where the district administration or workers compensation coordinator has actual knowledge of an accident whether the employee has or has not requested medical treatment. If an employee refuses to submit to an employer requested post-injury chemical test, the employee forfeits all related workers compensation benefits as provided in K.S.A. 44-501(b)(1)(E). Chemical test collection, labeling, and performance shall meet the requirements found in K.S.A. 44-501(b)(3).~~

Choice of Physician

The board shall have the right to choose a designated health care provider to provide medical assistance to any employee who suffers an injury while performing their job. However, if the injured employee chooses to go to a medical provider other than the designated provider, the recovery for such expenses shall be limited to \$500.00.

KASB Recommendation - 7/96; 2/98; 7/02; 12/14; 6/15; 6/19

Approved: USD 264 Policy - 9/15; 6/16; 7/19

GBH Supervision

GBH

The superintendent and other administrators designated by the superintendent have the right to supervise ~~certified~~licensed staff. The responsibility for the immediate supervision of ~~certified~~licensed staff rests with each building principal.

~~Approved:~~ KASB Recommendation - 2/98; 4/07; 6/19

Approved: USD 264 Policy - 7/19

GBRD Staff Meetings

GBRD

Staff meetings for ~~certified~~ licensed personnel shall be called by the administration.

~~Approved:~~ KASB Recommendation - 2/98; 4/07; 6/19

Approved: USD 264 Policy - 7/19

Paid Leave

~~See negotiated agreement.~~

Unpaid Leave

~~The board may grant a period of unpaid leave as determined by the board. The period of leave and reason for unpaid leave shall be determined by the board. The board shall not be required to pay any salary or benefits during periods of unpaid leave except as may be required by law.~~

Jury Leave

~~See negotiated agreement.~~

~~Licensed employees will be provided with paid and unpaid leave in accordance with applicable law and the negotiated agreement. The board reserves the right to grant additional leave.~~

KASB Recommendation - 7/03; 4/07; 6/19

Approved: USD 264 Policy - 7/19

TABLE OF CONTENTS (TC)

I--INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAM

If the board does not have a policy or rule on the subject; these codes will be marked with an asterisk (*)

| | |
|-------|--|
| IA | Philosophy - Mission Statement Goals and Objectives |
| IAA | Academic Freedom |
| IB | School Site Councils |
| IC | Curriculum Development - KSA 72-8205; 72-8212 Modifications Resources Personnel Financial Evaluation Curriculum Adoption & Modification- KSA 72-8205 |
| ICA | Pilot Projects Planning Research Pilot Project Evaluation (See IJ) |
| ICAA | Teaching Methods |
| *ICFA | Curriculum Guides and Course Outlines |
| *ID | Curriculum Design |
| IDA | Educational Program - KSA 72-8205; KSA 72-8212 Partnerships Curriculum Handbooks Educational Goals and Objectives Other Educational Programs (See IDAA, IDAB and IDAC) |
| IDAA | Special Programs Work-Study Programs <u>SN Includes the programs designed to meet the individual needs of students</u> |
| IDAB | Support Programs <u>SN Includes the range of programs designed to support students' needs.</u> Drug Education - KSA 65-2892a Student Mental Health Dropout Prevention At-Risk Students Guidance Homebound Instruction |
| IDAC | Exceptional Programs |
| *IDC | Extended Program (See AEB) Summer Program Evening Program |

| | |
|-------|--|
| | School Camp Program |
| | Travel Study Program |
| IDCE | College Classes (Dual Credit) |
| *IDCG | Suicide Awareness and Prevention |
| *IDDB | Remedial and Therapeutic |
| *IDDD | Gifted Students |
| *IDDE | Driver Training |
| *IDDF | Physically Handicapped (See JQA) |
| *IDDG | Mentally Handicapped |
| *IDDH | Perceptually Handicapped |
| *IDDI | Emotionally Disturbed |
| IDFA | Athletics - KSA 72-130 <u>et seq.</u> ; See KSHSAA By-Laws |
| *IDG | Adult Education program |
| IE | Instructional Arrangements |
| | Class Size |
| | Scheduling for Instruction |
| | Pre-enrollment |
| *IEA | Organization for Instructions |
| | Self-Contained Classrooms - KSA 10-1113; 79-3606 |
| | Nongraded Schools |
| | Departmentalization |
| | Team Teaching |
| | Differentiated Staffing |
| IEB | Charter Schools |
| *IEH | Independent Study |
| IF | Textbooks, Instructional Materials & Media Centers - KSA 72-8205; 72-8212 |
| | Textbook Selection and Adoption; 10-1113; 79-3606; 72-5389 |
| | Media Center Materials Selection Criteria |
| | Challenges to textbooks, instructional materials & media materials |
| | Textbook Rental - KSA 72-5390; 72-4107 |
| | Use of Textbooks; 72-4107 <u>et seq.</u> |
| *IFAB | Supplementary Materials Selection and Adoption - KSA 72-8205; 72-8212; 72-5389 |
| *IFAC | Equipment and Supplies Selection and Adoption - KSA 72-8205; 72-8212 |
| *IFBC | Staff Libraries |
| *IFBD | School Libraries |
| *IFBE | Instructional Television |
| | Closed-Circuit Television |
| | Educational Television |
| IFBH | Outside Speakers |
| IFC | Community Resources |
| | School Volunteers (See KFD) |
| *IFCA | Community Resource Guides (See IFC) |
| IFCB | Field Trips |
| *IH | Academic Achievement (See JF) |
| IHA | Grading Systems |
| *IHAA | Final Examinations |
| *IHAB | Report Cards (See JF) |
| IHB | Homework |
| *IHC | Class Rankings (See JR <u>et seq.</u>) |

| | |
|-------|--|
| *IHD | Honor Rolls (See JR <u>et seq.</u>) |
| *IHE | Promotion and Retention (See JFB) |
| IHEA | Make-Up Opportunities (See JBD, JDD) |
| *IHEB | Acceleration |
| IHF | Graduation Requirements (See JFC) - KSA 72-8205; KSA 72-1101, 72-1103 |
| *IHWA | Weighted Grade Point Average |
| II | Testing Programs <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Teacher Tests Group Achievement Tests State Required Tests |
| *IIA | Test Out Program (Credit by Examination) |
| IIBG | Computer Materials |
| IIBGA | Children's Internet Protection Act (CIPA) |
| IJ | Evaluation of Instructional Program (See IC , ICAA , ID , and MK , II) |
| IKB | Controversial Issues <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Teaching About Religion (See IKD) |
| IKCA | Human Sexuality and AIDS Education |
| IKD | Religion in the Schools <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Teaching About Religion Religion in the Curriculum Use of religious symbols Holidays - KSA 72-5308 (See AEA) Graduation and Ceremonies Silent Meditation - KSA 72-5308a |
| IKDA | Opt-out for Religious Reasons |
| IKE | Assemblies |
| *IKF | School Book Stores |
| *IKG | Book and Science Fairs |
| IKI | Lesson Plans |
| *IKJ | Flag Displays - KSA 73-701 <u>et seq.</u> ; 72-5308 |
| ING | Animals and Plants in the School - KSA 21-4310 |
| *IOA | Uniforms, Purchase of |

IFC Community Resources (See KFD)

IFC

The use of community resources is encouraged where legitimate educational objectives may be advanced.

~~School Volunteers (See KFD)~~

Approved:

~~**IFC-R Community Resources**~~

~~**IFC-R**~~

The ~~certified~~ licensed staff shall maintain a list of suitable community resources which may be ~~utilized~~ used for field trips and other excursions.

~~KASB Recommendation - 6/04; 4/07; 6/19~~

Approved: ~~USD 264 Policy - 7/19~~

IJ Evaluation of Instructional Program (See IC, ICA, A, and II & MK) IJ

The superintendent ~~shall~~ may develop guidelines to evaluate ~~a portion of~~ the instructional program ~~each year~~. This evaluation shall be part of the district's school improvement efforts ~~as required by current regulation~~.

~~Approved:~~

~~**IJ-R Evaluation of Instructional Program (See IC, ICA, II & MK) IJ-R**~~

The superintendent ~~shall~~ may establish special curriculum committees to study the district's instructional program on a regular schedule. The superintendent ~~shall~~ may require reports from these committees which shall include the committee's recommendations for improvement, modification, or elimination of any part of the instructional program. The superintendent ~~shall~~ may submit a comprehensive report from the committees to the board.

~~KASB Recommendation - 6/04; 4/07; 6/15; 6/19~~

~~Approved: USD 264 Policy - 7/19~~

Homeless Student Regulations Required by Federal and State Law

NOTE: This document **MUST** be approved by board action to become policy. File with clerk, distribute to principals and duplicate as necessary in district newsletters and other documents.

Homeless students shall, by definition, include the following:

1. Children and youth who are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship, or a similar reason; are living in motels, hotels, trailer parks, or camping grounds due to the lack of alternative adequate accommodations; are living in emergency or transitional shelters; or are abandoned in hospitals.
2. Children and youth who have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designated for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings.
3. Children and youth who are living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard housing, bus or train stations, or similar settings.
4. Migratory children who meet one of the above-described circumstances.

Enrollment/Placement (See JBC)

The district, according to the child's or youth's best interest, shall either continue the child's or youth's education in the school of origin for the

Homeless Student Regulations

2

duration of homelessness in any case in which: 1) a family becomes homeless between academic years or during an academic year; and 2) for the remainder of the academic year, if the child or youth becomes permanently housed during an academic year; or enroll the child or youth in any public school that non-homeless students who live in the attendance area in which the child or youth is actually living are eligible to attend.

School Stability

In determining the best interest of the child or youth, the district homeless student liaison shall:

- 1) presume that keeping the child or youth in the school of origin is in the child's or youth's best interest, except when doing so is contrary to the request of the child's or youth's parent or guardian, or (in the case of an unaccompanied youth) the youth;
- 2) consider student-centered factors related to the child's or youth's best interest, including factors related to the impact of mobility on achievement, education, health, and safety of homeless children and youth, giving priority to the request of the child's or youth's parent or guardian or (in the case of an unaccompanied youth) the youth;
- 3) if, after conducting the best interest determination based on consideration of the presumption in clause (1) and the student-centered factors in clause (2), it is determined that it is not in the child's or youth's best interest to attend the school of origin or the school requested by the parent or guardian, or (in the case of an unaccompanied youth) the youth, provide the child's or youth's

Homeless Student Regulations

3

parent or guardian or the unaccompanied youth with a written explanation of the reasons for its determination, in a manner and form understandable to such parent, guardian, or unaccompanied youth, including information regarding the right to appeal such determination; and

- 4) in the case of an unaccompanied youth, ensure that the district homeless student liaison assists in placement or enrollment decisions under this subparagraph, gives priority to the views of such unaccompanied youth, and provides notice to such youth of the right to appeal.

Immediate Enrollment

The school selected shall immediately enroll the homeless child or youth, even if the child or youth:

- 1) is unable to produce records normally required for enrollment, such as previous academic records, records of immunization and other required health records, proof of residency, or other documentation; or
- 2) has missed application or enrollment deadlines during any period of homelessness.

Relevant Academic Records

The enrolling school shall immediately contact the school last attended by the child or youth to obtain relevant academic and other records.

Relevant Health Records

If the child or youth needs to obtain immunizations or other required health records, the enrolling school shall immediately refer the parent or guardian of the child or youth, or (in the case of an unaccompanied youth) the youth, to the district homeless student liaison, who shall assist in obtaining necessary immunizations or screenings, or immunization or other required health records.

Records

Any record ordinarily kept by the school, including immunization or other required health records, academic records, birth certificates, guardianship records, and evaluations for special services or programs, regarding each homeless child or youth shall be maintained so that the records involved are available, in a timely fashion, when a child or youth enters a new school or school district and in a manner consistent with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act. See policies JR through JRD.

Enrollment Disputes

If a dispute arises over eligibility, school selection, or enrollment in a school:

- 1) the child or youth shall be immediately enrolled in the school in which enrollment is sought (whether sought by the parent, guardian, or unaccompanied youth), pending final resolution of the dispute, including all available appeals;
- 2) the parent or guardian of the child or youth or (in the case of an

unaccompanied youth) the youth shall be provided with a written explanation of any decisions related to school selection or enrollment made by the school, the local educational agency, or the State educational agency involved, including the rights of the parent, guardian, or unaccompanied youth to appeal such decisions; and

- 3) the parent, guardian, or unaccompanied youth shall be referred to the district homeless student liaison, who shall carry out the dispute resolution process as expeditiously as possible after receiving notice of the dispute.

Placement Choice

The choice regarding placement shall be made regardless of whether the child or youth lives with the homeless parents or has been temporarily placed elsewhere.

Privacy

Information about a homeless child's or youth's living situation shall be treated as a student education record, and shall not be deemed to be directory information, under policy JRB.

Contact Information

Nothing shall prohibit the district from requiring a parent or guardian of a homeless child or youth to submit contact information.

Definition

The term “school of origin” means the school that a child or youth

Homeless Student Regulations

6

attended when permanently housed or the school in which the child or youth was last enrolled, including a preschool.

When the child or youth completes the final grade level served by the school of origin, the term “school of origin” shall include the designated receiving school at the next grade level for all feeder schools.

Comparable Services

Each homeless child or youth shall be provided services comparable to services offered to other students in the school selected, including:

- 1) Transportation services;
- 2) Educational services for which the child or youth meets the eligibility criteria, such as services provided under Title I of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 or similar State or local programs, educational programs for children with disabilities, and educational programs for English learners;
- 3) Programs in career and technical education;
- 4) Programs for gifted and talented students; and
- 5) School nutrition programs.

Coordination

The district shall coordinate the provision of services under these regulations with the Department for Children and Families and other agencies or entities providing services to homeless children and youths and their families, including services and programs funded under the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act (42 U.S.C. 5701 et seq.), and transportation, transfer of

Homeless Student Regulations

7

school records, and other interdistrict activities, with other local educational agencies.

Housing Assistance

If applicable, the district shall coordinate with state and local housing agencies responsible for developing the comprehensive housing affordability strategy to minimize educational disruption for children and youths who become homeless.

The coordination required shall be designed to:

- 1) ensure that all homeless children and youths are promptly identified;
- 2) ensure that all homeless children and youths have access to, and are in reasonable proximity to, available education and related support services; and
- 3) raise the awareness of school personnel and service providers of the effects of short-term stays in a shelter and other challenges associated with homelessness.

Homeless Children and Youths with Disabilities

For children and youths who are both homeless and eligible for services under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq.), the district shall coordinate the provision of services under these regulations with the provision of programs for children with disabilities served by the district and other involved local educational agencies.

District Homeless Student Liaison

The board designates the following individual to act as the district's homeless student liaison: Superintendent of Schools, ~~150 S Prospect~~ 151 S 1st Ave, PO Box 248, Clearwater, KS, phone 620-584-2091, fax 620-584-6705. The district shall inform school personnel, service providers, and advocates working with homeless families of the duties of this liaison.

The district homeless student liaison shall ensure:

- 1) homeless children and youths are identified by school personnel through outreach and coordination activities with other entities and agencies;
- 2) homeless children and youths are enrolled in, and have a full and equal opportunity to succeed in, district schools;
- 3) homeless families and homeless children and youths have access to and receive educational services for which such families, children, and youths are eligible, including services through Head Start programs (including Early Head Start programs) under the Head Start Act (42 U.S.C. 9831 et seq.), early intervention services under part C of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. 1431 et seq.), and other preschool programs administered by the local educational agency;
- 4) homeless families and homeless children and youths receive referrals to health care services, dental services, mental health and substance abuse services, housing services, and other appropriate services;

- 5) the parents or guardians of homeless children and youths are informed of the educational and related opportunities available to their children and are provided with meaningful opportunities to participate in the education of their children;
- 6) public notice of the educational rights of homeless children and youths is disseminated in locations frequented by parents or guardians of such children and youths, and unaccompanied youths, including schools, shelters, public libraries, and soup kitchens, in a manner and form understandable to the parents and guardians of homeless children and youths, and unaccompanied youths;
- 7) enrollment disputes are mediated in accordance with these regulations;
- 8) the parent or guardian of a homeless child or youth, and any unaccompanied youth, is fully informed of all transportation services, including transportation to the school of origin, and is assisted in accessing transportation to the school that is selected;
- 9) school personnel providing services under these regulations receive professional development and other support; and
- 10) unaccompanied youths:
 - a. are enrolled in school;
 - b. have opportunities to meet the same challenging state academic standards as Kansas establishes for other children and youth;and

- c. are informed of their status as independent students under federal law regarding student financial assistance for higher education acquisition and that the youths may obtain assistance from the district homeless student liaison to receive verification of such status for purposes of the Free Application for Federal Student Aid.

The liaison shall also work with the state coordinator for education of homeless children and youth to request and receive needed technical assistance and monitoring to ensure the district complies with federal and state law regarding homeless students. Similarly, the liaison will coordinate with the state coordinator in order to provide professional development opportunities for district personnel to aid them in identifying and meeting the needs of homeless children and youths and will respond to inquiries from parents, guardians, and homeless children and youths to ensure they are provided with the full protection of the law and services they are due.

Notice

The district shall inform school personnel, service providers, advocates working with homeless families, parents and guardians of homeless children and youths, and homeless children and youths of the duties of the district homeless student liaison, and publish annually updated contact information for the liaison on the district's website.

Local and State Coordination

The district homeless student liaison, as a part of assigned duties, shall

Homeless Student Regulations

11

coordinate and collaborate with state coordinators, the community, and school personnel responsible for the provision of education and related services to homeless children and youths. Such coordination shall include collecting and providing to the state coordinator the reliable, valid, and comprehensive data.

Homeless Status

The district homeless student liaison may affirm, without further agency action by the Department of Housing and Urban Development, that a child or youth who is eligible for and participating in a program provided by the district, or the immediate family of such a child or youth, who meets the eligibility requirements, is eligible for such program or service.

Dispute Resolution Process

A complaint regarding the placement or education of a homeless child or youth shall first be presented orally and informally to the district's homeless student liaison. If the complaint is not promptly resolved, the complainant may present a formal written complaint (grievance) to the homeless student liaison. The written complaint must include the following information: date of filing, description of concerns, the name of the person or persons involved, and a recapitulation of the action taken during the informal charge stage. Within five (5) working days after receiving the complaint, the liaison shall state a decision in writing to the complainant, with supporting evidence and reasons. In addition, the liaison will inform the superintendent of the formal complaint and the disposition.

Transportation (See EDAA, JBC and JGG)

If it is in the best interest of the homeless child or youth to attend the school of origin, transportation to and from that school will be provided at the request of the parent or guardian or, in the case of an unaccompanied youth, the homeless coordinator. If the student's temporary housing is outside the attendance area of the school of origin, then the district will work with the school of origin to agree on a method to apportion the responsibility and costs for transporting the child. If an agreement cannot be reached, the costs will be shared equally.

KASB Recommended Regulation - 7/03; 4/07; 12/16

Approved: USD 264 Policy - 7/05; 2/17; 7/19

JBCB Foster Care Students

Foster Care Student Regulations

To Aid In Implementation of Federal Law

NOTE: This document MUST be approved by board action to become policy. File with clerk, distribute to principals, and duplicate as necessary in district newsletters and other documents.

The Every Student Succeeds Act (“ESSA”) addresses additional protections for students in foster care and establishes a system of joint responsibility for school districts, the Kansas State Department of Education (“KSDE”), and the Kansas Department for Children and Families (“DCF”) to ensure the educational stability of students in foster care.

For the purposes of these regulations, “foster care” means 24-hour substitute care for children placed away from their parents and for whom a child welfare agency has placement and care duties. This includes, but is not limited to, placements in foster family homes, foster homes of relatives, group homes, emergency shelters, residential facilities, child-care institutions, and pre-adoptive homes.

Transportation of Students in Foster Care

ESSA requires each Kansas school district to collaborate with child welfare agencies, such as DCF and tribal child welfare agencies, to develop and implement clear, written procedures for how transportation to maintain a student in foster care in his or her school of origin (when in the student’s best interest) will be provided, arranged, and funded. The procedures must ensure

that the transportation will be provided promptly, in a cost-effective manner, and in accordance with federal law. Also, they must address how additional costs will be absorbed. Therefore, if there are any additional costs incurred to maintain a foster care student in his or her school of origin, the district will provide the transportation if:

1. DCF agrees to reimburse the district for the additional costs;
2. The district agrees to pay the additional costs; or
3. DCF and the district split the additional costs.

Upon request, the district will provide an assurance to KSDE that the district has transportation procedures meeting the above requirements.

Additional Costs

“Additional costs” reflect the difference between what the district would spend to transport a student to the assigned school and the cost of transporting a student in foster care to his or her school of origin. Title I, Part A funds may be used to pay for additional transportation costs in Title I districts.

School of Origin

The “school of origin” is the school in which a student is enrolled at the time of placement in foster care or of a change in placement. A student in foster care is entitled to remain enrolled in his or her school of origin unless it is determined not to be in the student’s best interest to stay at that school.

Best-Interest Determination

DCF will make the final decision regarding whether it is in a stu-

dent's best interest to remain in the school of origin. District staff may be asked to provide information on the "educational best interest" of the student to support educational decision-making based on what is best for the student academically. For students receiving special education and related services under the Individual with Disabilities Education Act or for students on Section 504 accommodation plans, it is recommended that relevant team members should be consulted in the best interest determination process, as the district will still be required to ensure compliance with Least Restrictive Environment requirements.

The United States Department of Education has provided a list of factors that may be considered in determining the student's educational best interest, which include appropriateness of the current setting, proximity of placement to school attendance centers, the child's preference, the parents' preference, the child's attachment to the school of origin, where siblings will be placed, and the availability of needed services. The "best-interest determination" may not be made based on transportation costs or funding.

District Foster Care Liaison

The "district foster care liaison" is a district employee who facilitates the enrollment in or transfer to a public school of a student in the district who is a ward of the state. The district's foster care liaison is considered the designated point of contact for collaboration with DCF on transportation procedures.

The District has designated the following staff person as the District

Foster Care Student Regulations

4

foster care liaison:

Position: Superintendent of Schools

Address: ~~150 S Prospect~~ 151 S 1st Ave, PO Box 248, Clearwater, KS
67026-0248

Telephone: 620-584-2091 fax: 620-584-6705

Child Welfare Agency

In Kansas, DCF is the regular child welfare agency for collaboration on transportation procedures. The Child Protective Services (“CPS”) division of DCF will typically be the division that works with the district on issues related to students in foster care; however, tribal child welfare agencies may also be involved with this process. Therefore, whenever DCF is used in these regulations, it may be deemed to apply to any child welfare agency based on the circumstances.

Child Welfare Contact

The district, if receiving Title I, Part A funds, must collaborate on transportation procedures with the DCF-designated contact if DCF notifies the district in writing that DCF has designated an employee to serve as a point of contact for the district.

KASB Recommended Regulations - 12/16

Approved: USD 264 Policy - 2/17; ~~7/19~~

Complaints About Discrimination

The district is committed to maintaining a working and learning environment free from discrimination, insult, intimidation, or harassment due to race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, or disability.

Any incident of discrimination including acts of harassment shall promptly be reported for investigation and corrective action by the building principal or district compliance coordinator. Any student or employee who engages in discriminatory conduct shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination from employment or expulsion from school.

Discrimination against any student on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability, or religion in the admission or access to, or treatment in the district's programs and activities is prohibited. The Superintendent of Schools, ~~150 S. Prospect~~ 151 S 1st Ave, P.O. Box 248, Clearwater, Ks 67026-0248, 620-584-2091, has been designated to coordinate compliance with nondiscrimination requirements contained in Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Any student who believes that he or she has been discriminated against may file a complaint with the building principal, another administrator, the guidance counselor, or another certified staff member. Any school employee who receives a complaint of discrimination or harassment from a student shall inform the student of the employee's obligation to report the complaint and any proposed resolution of the complaint to the building principal. If the

JCE Complaints

JCE-2

building principal is the alleged harasser, the report shall be made to the district compliance coordinator. Any student complaint of discrimination shall be resolved under the district's discrimination complaint procedures in policy KN.

The district prohibits retaliation or discrimination against any person for opposing discrimination, including harassment; for participating in the complaint process; or making a complaint, testifying, assisting, or participating in any investigation, proceeding, or hearing.

Complaints About School Rules

Any student may file a complaint with the principal concerning a school rule or regulation as it applies to the student. The complaint shall be in writing, filed within 20 days following the application of the rule or regulation, and must specify the basis for the complaint. The principal shall investigate the complaint and inform the student of the resolution within 10 days after the complaint is filed.

KASB Recommendation - 7/96; 8/98; 4/07; 6/15

Approved: USD 264 Policy – 9/15 ; 7/19

KN Complaints (See BCBI, GAACA, GAAB, GAAF, IF, IKD and JCE) KN

The board encourages all complaints regarding the district to be resolved at the lowest possible administrative level. Whenever a complaint is made directly to the board as a whole or to a board member as an individual, it will be referred to the administration for study and possible resolution.

Discrimination against any individual on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability, age, or religion in the admission or access to, or treatment or employment in the district's programs and activities is prohibited. Harassment of an individual on any of these grounds is also prohibited. The superintendent of schools, ~~150 S. Prospect~~ 151 S 1st Ave, PO Box 248, Clearwater, KS 67026-0248 has been designated to coordinate compliance with nondiscrimination requirements contained in Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Information concerning the provisions of these Acts, and the rights provided thereunder, are available from the compliance coordinator.

Complaints About Discrimination or Discriminatory Harassment

Complaints of discrimination or discriminatory harassment by an employee should be addressed to the employee's supervisor, the building principal, or the district compliance coordinator. Complaints by a student should be addressed to the building principal, another administrator, the guidance counselor, or another certified staff member. Any school employee who receives a complaint of discrimination or harassment from a student shall inform the student of the employee's obligation to report the complaint and any

proposed resolution of the complaint to the building principal. If the building principal is the alleged harasser, the complaint shall be reported to the district compliance coordinator. Complaints by any other person alleging discrimination should be addressed to the building principal or the district compliance coordinator. Complaints about discrimination, including complaints of harassment, will be resolved through the following complaint procedures:

Informal Procedures

The building principal shall attempt to resolve complaints of discrimination or harassment in an informal manner at the building level. Any school employee who receives a complaint of discrimination harassment from a student, another employee or any other individual shall inform the individual of the employee's obligation to report the complaint and any proposed resolution of the complaint to the building principal. The building principal shall discuss the complaint with the individual to determine if it can be resolved. If the matter is resolved to the satisfaction of the individual, the building principal shall document the nature of the complaint and the proposed resolution of the complaint, and forward this record to the district compliance coordinator. Within 20 days after the complaint is resolved in this manner, the principal shall contact the complainant to determine if the resolution of the matter remains acceptable. If the matter is not resolved to the satisfaction of the individual in the meeting with the principal, or if the individual does not believe the resolution remains acceptable, the individual may initiate a formal complaint.

If discrimination or harassment has occurred, the district will take prompt, remedial action to prevent its reoccurrence. The district prohibits retaliation or discrimination against any person for opposing discrimination, including harassment for participating in the complaint process; or making a complaint, testifying, assisting, or participating in any investigation, proceeding, or hearing.

Formal Complaint Procedures

- A formal complaint should be filed in writing and contain the name and address of the person filing the complaint. The complaint should briefly describe the alleged violation. If an individual does not wish to file a written complaint and the matter has not been adequately resolved, the building principal may initiate the complaint. Forms for filing written complaints are available in each building office and the central office.
- A complaint should be filed as soon as possible after the conduct occurs, but not later than 180 days after the complainant becomes aware of the alleged violation, unless the conduct forming the basis for the complaint is ongoing.
- If appropriate, an investigation shall follow the filing of the complaint. If the complaint is against the superintendent, the board shall appoint an investigating officer. In other instances, the investigation shall be conducted by the building principal, the compliance coordinator or another individual appointed by the board. The investigation shall be informal but thorough. All interested persons, including the complainant and the person against whom the complaint is lodged, will be afforded an opportunity to submit written or oral evidence relevant to the complaint.
- A written determination of the complaint's validity and a description of the resolution shall be issued by the investigator, and a copy forwarded to the complainant and the accused to later than 30 days after the filing of the complaint.
 - ◊ If the investigation results in a recommendation that a student be suspended or expelled, procedures outlined in board policy and state law governing student suspension and expulsion will be followed.

- ◊ If the investigation results in a recommendation that an employee be suspended without pay or terminated, procedures outlined in board policy, the negotiated agreement or state law will be followed.
- Records relating to complaints filed and their resolution shall be forwarded to and maintained in a confidential manner by the district compliance coordinator.
- The complainant may appeal the determination of the complaint. Appeals shall be heard by the district compliance coordinator, a hearing officer appointed by the board, or by the board itself as determined by the board. The request to appeal the resolution shall be made within 20 days after the date of the written resolution of the complaint at the lower level. The appeal officer shall review the evidence gathered by the investigator and the investigator's report, and shall afford the complainant and the person against whom the complaint is filed an opportunity to submit further evidence, orally or in writing, within 10 days after the appeal is filed. The appeal officer will issue a written determination of the complaint's validity and a description of its resolution within 30 days after the appeal is filed.
- If discrimination or harassment has occurred, the district will take prompt, remedial action to prevent its reoccurrence. The district prohibits retaliation or discrimination against any person for opposing discrimination, including harassment; for participating in the complaint process; or making a complaint, testifying, assisting, or participating in any investigation, proceeding, or hearing.
- Use of this complaint procedure is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of any other remedies including the right to file a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights of the U.S. Department of Education, the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, or the Kansas Human Rights Commission.

Complaints About Policy

The superintendent shall report any unresolved complaint about policies to the board at the next regularly scheduled board meeting.

Complaints About Curriculum (See IF)

The superintendent shall report a failure to resolve any complaint about curriculum to the board at the next regularly scheduled board meeting.

Complaints About Instructional Materials

The building principal shall report any unresolved complaint about instructional materials to the superintendent immediately after receiving the complaint.

Complaints About Facilities and Services

The superintendent shall report any unresolved complaint about facilities and services to the board at the next regularly scheduled board meeting.

Complaints About Personnel

The superintendent or the building principal involved shall report any unresolved complaint about personnel to the board at the next regularly scheduled board meeting.

Complaints About Emergency Safety Intervention Use

Complaints concerning the use of emergency safety interventions by district staff shall be addressed in accordance with the local dispute resolution process outlined in board policy GAAF.

KASB Recommendation—9/97; 8/98; 3/00; 4/07; 6/13; 6/15

Approved: USD 264 Policy - 7/13; 9/15; 7/19